d'a

IN THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

SID J. WHITE

JUL 17 1991

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 77,551

RICKY LEWIS,

Respondent.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

MERIT BRIEF OF PETITIONER

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

BRENDA S. TAYLOR
Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar No. 778079
Westwood Center
2002 N. Lois Avenue, Suite 700
Tampa, Florida 33607
(813) 873-4739

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

/mad

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On January 11, 1989 the Respondent was charged with possession of a controlled substance. He entered a plea of nolo contedere and was placed on probation for a period of 18 months. Affidavits of violation of probation were filed on July 24, July 26, and October 6 of 1989.

On October 11, 1989, the State Attorney of the Twelfth for Manatee County, Florida, filed Judicial Circuit information charging Respondent, RICKY LEWIS, with possession of cocaine and possession of drug paraphernalia occurring on June 14, 1989, in violation of Section 893.13, Florida Statutes (1988) and Section 893.147, Florida Statutes (1985), respectively. previous informations had been filed on September 14, 1989, and October 9, 1989, charging the Appellant with possession of cocaine, sale of cocaine, possession with intent to sell and possession of paraphernalia in violation of Section 893.13, Florida Statutes (1988) and Section 893.147, Florida Statutes (1985), respectively.

On December 21, 1989, defense counsel filed a motion to strike the State's use of a multiplier when calculating points for legal constraint on the scoresheet. The State multiplied the points for legal constraint by the number of new offenses for which he was to be sentenced. A hearing was held on the motion and subsequently, it was denied by the trial court. Judge Gallen, stated in his order that he believed the Appellant's argument to be a strong one but felt that absent any other

precedent, he was required to follow the ruling of $\underline{\text{Walker } v}$. State, 546 So.2d 764 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989) allowing such a procedure.

Respondent, reserving the right to appeal the guidelines score and sentence entered nolo contendere pleas to the new substantive offenses and to the violation of probation. Respondent received an overall sentence of seven years incarceration. Notice of Appeal was timely filed on January 31, 1990.

On appeal, the Second District Court held that the trial court erred in multiplying the points for legal constraint by the number of new offenses committed by the defendant while on probation to arrive at the defendant's presumptive guidelines sentence. The Second District reversed Respondent's sentence and remanded the case for correction of the scoresheet and sentencing.

The ruling of the Second District directly and expressly conflicted with the ruling in <u>Walker</u>, supra, and <u>Carter v. State</u>, 571 So.2d 520 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991). Petitioner filed a notice to invoke discretionary jurisdiction based on the express and direct conflict.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

In view of the purpose and intent of sentencing guidelines, it is clear that the Legislature did not intend for repeat offenders to only be assessed legal constraint points once and be given immunity for all violations thereafter when the defendant commits thirteen new offenses. Therefore the trial court properly assessed legal constraints points for each offense. This court should reverse the ruling of the Second District and reinstate the sentence imposed by the trial court.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

LEGAL CONSTRAINT POINTS ARE PROPERLY ASSESSED FOR EACH OFFENSE COMMITTED BY A DEFENDANT WHILE UNDER SUCH CONSTRAINT.

The purpose of the sentencing guidelines is to increase the severity of the sanctions as the length and nature of the defendant's criminal history increases. Gissinger v. State, 481 So.2d 1269 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989). The Respondent committed thirteen new offenses while on community control. The primary purpose of sentencing is to punish the offender. Fla.R.Crim.P. 3.701(b)(2). In view of the purpose and intent of sentencing under the guidelines, the procedure used in Walker v. State, 546 So.2d 764 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989), and followed by the circuit in this matter, is both logical and necessary.

The "legal status at the time of the offense" refers not only to the primary offense, but any offenses at conviction.

Carter v. State, 571 So.2d 520, 522 (Fla. 4th DCA 1990).

Therefore a defendant is properly assessed legal constraint points to each offense for which he is sentenced where he was under legal constraint at the time of the offense. Id. To do otherwise would be irrational and unfair.

The State recognizes the recent opinion in Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure RE: Sentencing Guidelines (Rules 3.701 and 3.988), 16 F.L.W. (S)198 (Fla. March 7, 1991), wherein the court acknowledges receipt of a petition to make changes to the

committee notes accompanying Rule 3.701(d)(6). The petition states that the commission never intended to assess legal constraint points for each offense committed while under legal constraint. However the State believes that the rule itself and the purpose of the guidelines is a better indication of the intent of the legislature rather than a reactionary statement from the commission rendered after the judicial process has been involved.

The legal status points should be applied if not for each new offense, then at least for each new separate criminal episode. To permit a defendant to commit numerous crimes with only one penalty is equivalent to permitting him to commit several crimes and only be charged for one. Each time Appellee committed a new offense knowing that he was on probation, he violated his probation. Therefore he should be assessed legal constraint points for each offense. To do otherwise would tell defendants that once they violated their probation or community control, they are free to commit as many crimes as possible since they will only receive one punishment. This is not what was intended by the legislature.

The Fifth and Fourth District courts of Appeal properly assessed points each for each new offense. This Court should uphold the procedure employed in <u>Walker</u> and <u>Carter</u>, and reverse and remand this matter.

CONCLUSION

The question certified by the Fifth District court of Appeal in Flowers v. State, 567 So.2d 1055 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990), should be answered affirmatively (see Case No. 76,845 pending in this court), and the decision in the instant case reversed.