WOOA

FILED SID J. WHITE

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JUL 1 1991

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clark

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

VS.

Case No. 77,417

RONALD WORLEY,

Respondent.

.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

### ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON THE MERITS

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

MEGAN OLSON ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 656150

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse P. O. Box 9000--Drawer PD Bartow, FL 33830 (813) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

# TOPICAL

### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondent was the Appellant in the Second District Court of Appeal and the defendant in the trial court. Petitioner, the State of Florida, was the Appellee in the Second District Court of Appeal. The record on appeal, which was utilized on the District Court level, will be referred to by the symbol "R" followed by the appropriate page number.

# SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The sentencing guidelines do not call for the multiplication of legal constraint point by the number of new offenses committed while a person is under such constraint.

### ARGUMENT

### ISSUE I

POINTS FOR LEGAL CONSTRAINT SHOULD ONLY BE SCORED ONCE FOR EACH SENTENCING EVENT REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF NEW OFFENSES COMMITTED WHILE SUCH CONSTRAINT WAS IMPOSED.

Recently, the issue of multiplying legal constraint points on the guidelines scoresheet by the number of new offenses committed while a defendant was under such restraint has been addressed by several of Florida's District Court of Appeals resulting in conflict in the manner in which the issue was decided. The Fifth District Court of appeal in Walker v. State, 546 So.2d 764 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989), held that the multiplication of such point was permissible. The Fourth District Court of Appeal agreed with this decision in Carter v. State, 571 So.2d 520 (Fla. 4th DCA 1990). This question was later certified to this Court by the Fifth District Court of Appeal in Flowers v. State, 567 So.2d 1055 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990).

The First, Second and Third District Courts of Appeal have taken the contrary position and have concluded that legal constraint points should not be multiplied by the number of new offenses committed. Sellers v. State, 16 F.L.W. D921 (Fla. 1st DCA 4/3/91); Lewis v. State, 16 F.L.W. D352 (Fla. 2d DCA 2/1/91); Scott v. State, 16 F.L.W. D356 (Fla. 2d DCA 2/1/91); Worley v. State, 16 F.L.W. 354 (Fla. 2d DCA 2/1/91) and Cabrera v. State, 16 F.L.W. D898 (Fla. 3d DCA 4/2/91).

Assuming arguendo that ambiguity exists concerning the scoring of legal constraint points the rule of lenity and strict construction precluded the application of a multiplier. ambiguity that may have existed is clarified by the petition of the sentencing guideline commission to this Court to allow the amendment of the committee notes to Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.701(d)(6). Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure Re: Sentencing Guidelines (Rules 3.701 and 3.988), 16 F.L.W. S198 (Fla. 3/7/91). As the Petitioner notes, in the petition, the commission requests that the committee note to Rule 3.701(d)(6) be amended to reflect the fact that the commission never intended multiple scoring of legal constraint points for each new offense. The rule itself does not provide for the application of a multiplier when assessing legal constraint point. The use of such a multiplier will result in disproportionate sentences which is direct contrast to the uniformity in sentencing, purpose of the guidelines themselves.

The Petitioner suggests that a person who commits more than one offense while under legal should be penalized more harshly by using the multiplier, than a person who commits only one offense. There is, however, a flaw in this logic. A person demonstrates his lack of ability or desire to comply with such restraint if he commits one or three new offenses. The purpose of legal constraint points is to punish or enhance the sentence based upon this lack of compliance, a factor which need only be assessed once. In addition, a person who commits several new offenses does

receive a harsher sentence than a person who commits only one. Each of those new offenses are calculated into the guidelines and are part and parcel of the sentence ultimately received.

The decisions of the First, Second and Third District Courts of Appeal are correct in their ultimate conclusions that multipliers should not be applied when assessing legal constraint points. Thus, the decision of the Second District Court of Appeals in Worley, should be affirmed.

### CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing arguments and authorities this Court should hold that legal constraint points should not be multiplied and should uphold the decision in Worley.